Rick Schroder (Db

From: Bob Corrigan

Sent: Thursday, May 16, 2024 10:23 AM
To: Rick Schroder

Subject: Polk Cemetery

Good morning Mr. Schroder,

If time and scheduling allow, may | please have a few minutes of the Council time at the next City Council
meeting? I'd like to pass on to them what I've learned re: the Constellation of Living Memorials program.

Personally, | am not as excited about the proposal as | was at first. I'll attach a document to another mail
for your reference.

Thank you for your consideration,

Bob Corrigan
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A Week in the

Life of
the Constellation

Click_here to
watch

of Living
Memorials
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CONSTELLATION OF LIVING MEMORIALS
PROGRAM AGREEMENT

Cemetery Name:
(Hereinafter, the “Cemetery” or Sponsoring Organization)

Cemetery Address:

Cemetery Lead Person:

l Parties:

This Agreement, dated is between the Cemetery, or Sponsoring Organization,
and the Friends of the Warren Ferris Cemetery {“FWFC").

FWFC is sponsoring the Constellation of Living Memorials Pilot Program (“CLM Program®).
Details of the Project to be funded by the Grant are described on Schedule A.

. Commitment by FWFC:

FWFC to provide instruction to each Cemetery on how to engage and empower their
community to become a star in the Constellation of Living Memorials, by transforming their
Cemetery into a wildlife sanctuary where native plants, butterflies, bees, and other wildlife will
thrive, where families and children can learn about our natural environment, and where
community can come together to honor their ancestors and Dallas’s rich cultural and natural
history.

Cemetery shali;

1. Obtain written approval from the property owner. Provide this written approval to the
Friends of the Warren Ferris Cemetery Board before any land restoration commences. If
ownership of the property is unknown, Cemetery will share title research with FWFC.

2. Commit to faithfully executing the environmental survey protocols, following the
instructions set forth in Schedule B. (not mandatory)

1



10.

a. Time requirement- msmﬂedihmmm&ummemm

surv ! pro gggl reguurements in3 gartial day; Qg yg r. Some addltlonal time to

organize the photos and notes may be required but shouid not be burdensome.
Consult the Texas Society of Professional Surveyors for local, pro bono survey assistance
defining the cemetery's topography and trees for the selected areas for land restoration.
Identify the Cemetery 3 ecoreglon zone as outlmed by Texas Parks & Wlldllfe

Mm

Create a local constellation community around the Cemetery to bring together
neighbors who will volunteer in the landscape restoration process and the execution of
the environmental protocols.

Create educational materials and plan outreach events to communicate the shared goals
of the Cemetery and FWFC's CLM Program. All educational materials produced on-line,
or in-print must include: “This Cemetery is a participant in the Constellation of Living

Memorials program.” To include CLM’s QR code:
Cemetery will be added as a new star on the CLM website and will keep a Facebook page
to be linked for others to follow and learn from your progress.

Develop landscape restoration plans in concert with Cemetery’s environmental
restoration objectives, documenting the reintroduction plant list, and creating a
schedule to estimate timings for new plantings throughout the 2-year period.

Landscape restoration plans may include the use of all types of tools and technalogies
that are deemed to be appropriate for the individual circumstances of the cemeteries.
Plant removal methods may include hand pulling or hand tools, large excavation, or
cultivation equipment, burning under the direction of the Fire Department, or chemical
products such as herbicides used only by a certified professional. During removal of
invasive plants, circumstances will vary, and methads should be assessed, considering
sensitive areas such as open waterways, depth of water tables, local regulations,
proximity to homes or proximity to EPA defined endangered species.

Within one month of signing this agreement, define each area of the Cemetery to be
restored, both on a map as well as with fixed markers on the ground. Photograph at
least three images of each area to be restored. Add these photos to your cemetery’s
Facebook page. Repeat this photo shoot again during sprint, summer and fall of 2024
and 2025.



11.

12.

13,

14.

15.

g

1,

Following Schedule B - Citizen Science Survey Protocols - create plans, collect data and
imagery, and provide reports back to FWFC, adhering to the timelines required. These
timelines are important to follow in order for all of us to see the beautiful
transformation that we will have achieved together. (not mandatory)

Minimum of 80% of fundraiser monies raised will go towards the purchase of plants or
seeds. At least 75% of plant/seed purchases must be native flora. The balance may be
used for non-native flora so long as the purchase is for non-invasive, beneficial pollinator
flora.

A maximum of up to 20% of monies spent may be used for educational signage,
materials for educational events, non-motorized gardening tools and garden hoses.

No hardscaping but topsoil (if needed), and mulch for pathways may be used. FWFC has
advised Cemetery that wood chips can often be delivered free from local tree service
companies.

All volunteers/Employees /Contractors must refrain from mowing for two years in the
areas of restoration, except for pathways to access headstones.

signage & Fundraising:

Constellation of Living Memorials educational signage will be avaiiable for your cemetery
to download for printing on a metal sign. One sign will include a designation that the
Cemetery is a participant of the “Constellation of Living Memorials” to be posted at the
entrance of the Cemetery.

Cemetery is responsible for its own fundraising and signage and educational materials.
For all working and educational events, Cemetery shall require all volunteers and event
goers to sign a Liability Release and Model Release Form, including minor forms signed
by parent and/or guardian. All first-time volunteers sign a release. Forms will be found
in the shared on-line Google CLM group folder or can be obtained by requesting them
from FWFC.

metery’s Internal Education, Planning and Reporting Commitment:

Cemetery shall plan to educate its board and volunteers regarding:

a. The difference between pollinator gardens and native ecological restoration for
Blackland Prairie and Woodland understory, including the following key
take-aways:

I Pollinator gardens are created for adult pollinators.
ii. Ecological restoration sites should include habits for overwintering for
nesting/hibernation and food source/habitats for larvai/pupating phases.



2. Cemetery shall consider employing a combination of both pollinator and ecological
restoration sites on at least:
20% planted if over 10 acres
25% planted if 8 to 9.9 acres
30% planted if 6 to 7.9 acres
35% planted if 4 to 5.9 acres
40% planted if 2 to 3.9 acres
45% planted if 1.1 to 1.9 acre
50% planted if 1 acre or less

3. Cemetery shall ensure that an initial comprehensive plant survey to be maintained
throughout time on the cemetery’s iNaturalist page.

4, m hall train its volunteers/empl ntractors to never mow in the areas
selected for restoration.

5.

6. Cemetery shall create a landscape design that promotes plant succession by:

a. Selecting flowering plants that bloom in different seasons to create diversity and
sustain sustenance for pollinators throughout the year, and

b. Selecting plants that address the needs of larval feeding and overwintering
habitat.

SIGNED:
By Representative of Cemetery or Sponsoring Organization:

Signature: Date:

Name:

Title:

By Board Representative of the Friends of the Warren Ferris Cemetery:

Signature: Date:

Name:

Title:




Schedule A
Constellation of Living Memorials Project Details

The Constellation of Living Memorials Pilot Program is a program being undertaken by the
Friends of the Warren Ferris Cemetery. The Project is designed to preserve and restore historic
cemeteries in communities, in part, by restoring overgrown land or cemeteries in-need into
self-sustaining native habitats. The goals of the Project are to thereby bring these sacred
grounds back to life and honor a city’s rich cultural and natural history.

Each participating cemetery, pursuant to the guidelines provided in this Agreement, upon
signing, will qualify to be a part of the Project.

Schedule B

Consteilation of Living Memorials Citizen Science Survey Protocol (not mandatory)

Preparation

1.

Assure that the mapping with markers of each area of the Cemetery to be restored,
established Date: , are still visible and appropriate.

Develop pollinator ID educational tools so that volunteers can broadly identify which
insects are pollinators (Orders: Lepidoptera, Hymenoptera, Diptera, some Coleoptera)

Cemetery to create its own i-Naturalist page to engage its community in gathering data
on flora and fauna to also be found in their section of the CLM website.

Hold training events for survey volunteers. Cover materials on use of iNaturalist, broad
pollinator ID, and protocol for both floral and pollinator surveys.

Create datasheets (observer, date, cemetery site, weather, temperature, relevant data
entries for pollinator/plant survey).

Photos and notes must be taken to document the scope of the plant populations prior to
removal of any exotic plants. Take at least 3 images within each marked restoration area
and make detailed notes of plant species, populations, and any other observations.

Itis important to retain vegetation of cultural significance to burial practices of the
past. As a new star in the constellation, your cemetery is to provide educational
initiatives to support that these plantings are to be retained.
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Photographs will be taken at three time points per year at each restoration area in each
Cemetery. An attempt will be made to approximate the aspect, perspective, and time of day as
closely as possible for all capture points. (The goal for this will be to create imagery showing the
transformation in a smooth flow of pictures. imagine the 2 years of images being linked
together almost in a time-lapse manner.}

Take at least 3 images of each marked restoration area at the following dates:
e Start Date: per main body of this Agreement
e Then quarterly over a two year period
o First or Second week of October 2024, timed to correspond with the peak of the
Monarch butterfly migration - (at same timing as the pollinator and flora survey)

Pollinator {(Fauna) Survey

Takes place three times per year: Spring, Summer, Fall at Cemetery for the pre and
post-restoration years. Specifically:

e last week of April

® Second week of July

e First or second week of October

Time of day is important for the pollinator surveys. Try to time the sampling activity for peak
insect activity. This may vary with the weather, but is usually mid- morning when it is warm
enough for insect activity, but not too hat as insects will seek shelter during hot afternoons. Do
not survey on high wind days.

1. Divide the cemetery into manageable patches. Each volunteer oversees one patch per
survey to prevent re-sampling.

2. Timed sampling. Volunteers sample within each designated patch to identify pollinators
for 1hr.

3. Volunteers record all pollinators they see by photographing and uploading to the
Cemetery’s iNaturalist project.



4. Volunteers record data for each observation, including:

1.

6.

Elora Survey

Pollinator group
Life stage (larvae/pupa/adult)

2
3. iNaturalist entry number
4,
5

iNaturalist 1D suggestion
Interaction with plants {y/n)
1. If {Y) interaction with plants, take picture of stem, flower, and leaves and
create iNaturalist entry in project
2. Plant iNaturalist entry number
3. Plant iNaturalist ID suggestion
Observation notes

Takes place three times per year: Spring, Summer, Fall at Cemetery for the pre and
post-restoration years. Specifically:

e Last week of April

e Second week of July

® First or second week of October

1. Divide the cemetery into manageable patches. Each volunteer oversees one patch per
survey to prevent re-sampling.

2. Timed sampling. Volunteers sample within designated patch to identify all flowering
plants for 1hr or until all plants are identified.

3. Volunteers record all unique plants they see in their patch by photographing and
uploading to the Cemetery’s iNaturalist project.

4. Volunteers record data for each observation, including:

1
2.
3.
4.

iNaturalist entry number
iNaturalist ID suggestion

Number of this plant within patch
Observation notes
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Within one month after each of the 3 annual survey events, provide a report back to FWFC.
These reports shall include:
® Surveys using i-Naturalist and other similar tools to determine the presence and
population density of identified plants and types of insects (primarily pollinators)
e Photographs taken at pre-determined fixed locations
® Successes, failures, and other observations that could improve the pilot’s success.

Communicate regularly on the Constellation of Living Memorial Community Facebook page to
share tips, data forms, and tricks that your group may have learned!

THancmut tha Warrea Fermy Cemetory, The Natlve Flant Saciefy #f Troaas aoed Eie (allas Ploaner Azreciaticn partsarsh:n introdores

1/3 of 15,000+ Texas Cemeterigs
are neglected.. - ' 4%

Imagine transforming those-inta
native landscapes to capand foca
and migratory pathways..,

..to honor our pioneers and loved
and reconnect to the circle of file.

- " Know of a
. neglected historic
cemetery in need? -

: Learn more:
v kndsolthowatentemiscemetery.om/projects

CLM Contact: Julie@julieannfineman.com 213 700-7481
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